
Wilsonville Tourism Promotion Committee 

* materials in packet      materials at meeting 

CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OREGON  
29799 SW Town Center Loop East • Wilsonville, OR 97070 • 503-682-1011 • www.ci.wilsonville.or.us 

 

VOTING MEMBERS 
Jeff Brown, Chair 
General Manager, 
Holiday Inn Wilsonville 
Darren Harmon 
General Manager, 
Family Fun Center 
Al Levit, Vice Chair 
Bike Club Coordinator; 
Wilsonville Planning 
Commissioner 
David Stead 
General Manager, 
Langdon Farms Golf 
Club 
Elaine Swyt 
Principal, 
Mediaphysics; 
Wilsonville Parks & 
Recreation Advisory 
Board Chair 

ADVISORY /  
EX-OFFICIO 
MEMBERS 
City of Wilsonville 
City Councilor 
Charlotte Lehan, 
Council Liaison 

VACANT, Parks & 
Recreation Director 

Brian Stevenson, 
Parks & Recreation 
Coordinator 
(designee) 

Clackamas County 
Tourism & Cultural 
Affairs (TCA) 
Danielle Cowan, 
Director  

Jim Austin, Community 
Relations Lead 
(designee) 

Samara Phelps, 
Development Lead 
(designee) 

Washington County 
Visitors Association 
(WCVA) 
Carolyn McCormick, 
President/CEO  

Sylke Neal-Finnegan, 
VP/Marketing & 
Communications 
(designee) 

Wilsonville Area 
Chamber of 
Commerce 
Kevin Ferrasci 
O’Malley, CEO 

STAFF 
Mark Ottenad, 
Public/Government 
Affairs Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, February 14, 2017 • 10 am – 12 pm 

Willamette River Room, Wilsonville City Hall 
 

1. Welcome & Introductions 10:00 
• Committee members and guests self-introductions 

• Introduction of Emily Bryant Utz, Group/Tourism Specialist,  
World of Speed 

2. Committee Business/Updates 10:10 
• Recruitment for two vacant positions on committee 

• Approve Meeting Notes of prior meeting on Dec. 1, 2016 * 

• Request for Proposals (RFP) for Tourism Development &  
Operations Coordinator Consultant: Responses due March 16 

• Tourism Website PSA with Wilsonville Chamber of Commerce 

• 2017 Committee meetings schedule (over) 

• Draft FY2017-18 Budget for tourism program 

• City Hosts French Prairie Bridge Project Open House on Feb. 22 

• Wilsonville Town Center Plan Task Force Named 

3. New Business 10:40 
• City “Community Tourism Matching Grant Program” 
o Summary of Applications * 
o Copies of Applications Distributed to Members  
o Procedures and Process for Feb 22 Grant Review  

and Disbursements by Committee 

4. Next Meeting 11:50 
• Wed, Feb 22, 6 - 8 pm at Council Chambers, City Hall:  

Committee members’ review and grant-award disbursements of City’s 
Community Tourism Matching Grant Program Applications 



Wilsonville Tourism Promotion Committee 

January – April 2017 Meetings 

Version 1/27/2017 

 
• Tue, Feb 14, 10 am - 12 pm 
Willamette River Rm, City Hall 
RE: Review of City tourism grant-program applications submitted. Updates and news. 
 
• Wed, Feb 22, 6 - 8 pm 
Council Chambers, City Hall   
RE: Committee members’ review and grant-award disbursements of City’s Community 
Tourism Grant Program applications  
 
• Tue, Mar 21, 10 am - 12 pm  
Willamette River Rm, City Hall 
RE: Initial review of tourism consultant proposals responses to the RFP; review of 
County’s Community Partnership Tourism Grant Program applications submitted. 
Updates and news. 
 
• Wed, Mar 22, 6 - 8 pm 
Council Chambers, City Hall   
RE: Committee members’ review and grant-award disbursements of County’s 
Community Partnership Tourism Grant Program applications. 
 
HOLD for Potential Interview Dates with Tourism Consultant RFP proposers, at 
Willamette River Rm, City Hall 
• Tue, Apr 11, 10 am - 12 pm 
• Thu, Apr 13, 10 am - 12 pm 
• Tue, Apr 18, 10 am - 12 pm 
• Thu, Apr 20, 10 am - 12 pm 
 
• Thu, Apr 27, 10 am - 12 pm 
Willamette River Rm, City Hall 
Potential recommendation on successful Tourism RFP proposer 
 

 



Wilsonville Tourism Promotion Committee 

CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OREGON  
29799 SW Town Center Loop East • Wilsonville, OR 97070 • 503-682-1011 • www.ci.wilsonville.or.us 

MEETING MINUTES 

December 1, 2016  

Willamette River Room, Wilsonville City Hall 

1. Call to Order; Welcome & Introductions 

Voting members attending: Jeff Brown, Chair; Al Levit, Vice Chair; Darren Harmon; David Stead. 
Voting member absent: Elaine Swyt.  

Ex-officio members, staff and guests attending: City Councilor Charlotte Lehan; Danny Abrego; 
Jim Austin, CCTCA; Kevin Ferrasci O’Malley, Wilsonville Chamber; Sylke Neal-Finnegan, WCVA; 
Mark Ottenad; Brian Stevenson. 

2. Committee Business 

Recruitment for Resignation of Committee Members: Mark Ottenad reported that two committee 
members resigned since the prior meeting: Karla Tovar, Position #7, with a term ending 6/30/18; and 
Kathleen Mason, Position #1, with a term ending 6/30/19. He reported that he understood that Karla 
Tovar had suddenly resigned from World of Speed and that Kathleen Mason had gained new 
additional duties to include acting as development director for Old Aurora Colony Museum that 
prevented her participation. 

Members discussed a number of potential businesses that could be contacted. Councilor Lehan noted 
that having representation form French Prairie south of the Willamette River could be beneficial, 
given the region as a tourism marketing target. Some suggested names include Woodburn Premium 
Outlets, McMenamins Old Church, Powerland Antique Museum, Al’s Garden Center, Fir Point 
Farms, World of Speed Museum, St Josef’s Winery, Clackamas County Fair, Bridgeport Village and 
The Grand Hotel in Tualatin.  

Approve Meeting Notes of Prior Meeting: Committee members reviewed the meeting notes of Oct. 
27, 2016. Al Levit moved and Jeff Brown seconded to adopt the meeting minutes as presented. 
Minutes approved unanimously. 

2017 Committee meeting date change request for City Community Tourism Grant Program 
applications review and award: City staff noted a schedule conflict and requested that the grant 
review/award date be changed from Thur, Feb 23, to Wed, Feb 22, 6:00 p.m., 2017. Members 
discussed that this date change would work for their schedules. Mark Ottenad indicated that he would 
send out a Doodle poll for potential 2017 meeting dates. 

Brian Stevenson distributed two handouts pertaining to the tourism grant programs: a history of the 
City tourism grant program applicants and awards and information about the Clackamas County 
Community Partnership program (see attachments to these minutes).  

Jim Austin noted that the County was moving to standardize the County grant program across all 
communities served, including using an online application form. 

Updates: Mark Ottenad reported that Brian Stevenson would be filling the now vacant position of 
Community Services Manager, in addition to his duties as Recreation Coordinator, during the 
recruitment process for the manager position. He also noted that recruitment continues for the Parks 
& Recreation Director position. 

Mark Ottenad reported that the City can move forward with securing a minimum of three bids for a 
professional visitor profile study, which would take about one year and cost approximately $40,000 



Wilsonville Tourism Promotion Committee 
Meeting Minutes 12/1/2016 Page 2 

 
to $50,000. He also distributed excerpts from the WCVA visitor profile study conducted over a 
seven-month period in 2012 that cost $33,000. 

3. Tourism Program Consulting RFP  

Draft-3 of Request for Proposals (RFP) for Tourism Development & Operations Coordinator 
Consultant: Committee members reviewed a revised draft Request for Proposal (RFP) for Tourism 
Development & Operations Coordinator Consultant. Mark Ottenad noted that the City Attorney was 
quite firm that a position description title that includes “manager” or “director” was inappropriate 
since it connotes that the person is an employee. Several changes were made to the draft RFP to 
clarify that the position is not an employee and rather that of a consultant, including not noting the 
percent of time to be dedicated to certain projects or tasks that would imply employer control. 

Members discussed the RFP title and suggested changing “consultant” to “services,” in part to reflect 
if an agency or consultancy were to bid on the RFP rather than a sole-proprietor consultant. 

Members discussed a few additional modifications, including: 

 Add a note about developing on-going tourism programs. 

 Add quarterly reporting to and setting priorities in consultation with the committee. 

 Modify outline style sections 1A,B,C to use lower-case a,b,c; upper-case used as a major 
section outline style already. 

4. Tourism Website  

Draft City Contract Scope and Rates Exhibits for Chamber of Commerce Tourism Website 
hosting and management: Members reviewed a revised draft City response composed of a Scope 
and Rates exhibit for a professional services agreement for the Chamber’s tourism website proposal 
dated September 26, 2016. Mark Ottenad noted that City contracts for under $25,000 per year allow 
the City to do a sole-source contract with the Chamber for the tourism website that could 
accommodate the $1,000/month hosting/management fee plus an annual $4,000 of site-related 
hosting and other fees. 

Members discussed thoroughly the Chamber’s request for seeking to leverage public funds for a 
tourism website by locating matching private-sector funds through advertising, sponsorships and 
other avenues that could be used to improve the website’s appearance and functionality. Kevin 
Ferrasci O’Malley indicated that the actual cost of website management, content expansion and 
adding new functionality could easily surpass the $1,000 proposed monthly maintenance and 
management fee. He noted that the Chamber would be willing to make the “books” for the tourism 
website revenues and expenses open to the City. 

5. New Business 

Jim Austin reported on the Clackamas County Tourism community conversations on strategic 
priorities for 2017-2021 that is set for Wilsonville on Wed., Dec 14; 3:30-5:30 pm, at World of 
Speed 

6. Next Steps 

Members discussed finalizing the draft RFP and website contract in order to get to a draft itemized 
budget; and contacting Visitor Profile Study consultants for bids. Mark Ottenad indicated that he 
would get out a Doodle poll of potential 2017 meeting dates. Members decided to cancel the tentative 
Committee meeting set for Thur, Dec. 8. 



 
 

Community Tourism/Match Grant 
2017 Application/Award Log 

 

Organization  Event  $ Request  $ Award 
Funding 

Agreement
Wilsonville Arts & Culture Council 
Sarah Wolfe, Festival President 
PO Box 861 
Wilsonville OR  97070 
theonie@WilsonvilleArts.org 

Festival of the Arts 
 
503‐638‐6933 
 

$5,000     

Wilsonville Brewfest 
Erin Telles, President 
8633 SW Main St #400 
Wilsonville OR  97070 
erin.telles@hotmail.com 

Wilsonville Brewfest 
 
503‐570‐7773 
 

$5,000     

Wilsonville Celebration Days 
Brady Mordhorst, President  
PO Box 1511 
Wilsonville OR  97070 
letscreate@events37.com 

Fun in the Park Festival 
 
503‐277‐9238 
 

10,000     

Wilsonville Kiwanis Club 
Nic West, Fun Run Chair 
PO Box 2104 
Wilsonville OR  97070 
drnic@mywestchiroprctic.com 

Kiwanis Kids Fun Run 
 
971‐777‐1829 
 

$5,000     

Wilsonville Rotary Foundation 
John Holley, Concert Co‐Chair 
31447 SW Country View Ln     
Wilsonville OR 97070 

holleyjc46@gmail.com 

Summer Concert Series 
 
503‐682‐2840  $5,000     

TOTALS    $30,000  $25,000 
 

 


	MEETING AGENDA
	Tuesday, February 14, 2017 • 10 am – 12 pm
	Willamette River Room, Wilsonville City Hall
	January – April 2017 Meetings
	Version 1/27/2017



